O© oo N oo 0o AWNPE

e N
W N EF-RO

RN
SN

NINNMNNNNNRPRPERPRRPRERER
OO0, WNEOOOW-NO U

N
~

wwwwwgwwwwmm
O 00 N O O WNPEFE O OO

APPROVED

VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALSMINUTES
M ar ch 24, 2004

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Pro-Tem Lukas cdled the meeting to order a 7:30 PM.
ROLL CALL

Present: Mr. Baker, Mr. Benes, Mr. Domijan, Mr. Sleeter,
Ch. Pro-Tem Lukas

Absent:Mr. Gray, Ch. White

A quorum was established.
MINUTES

Mr. Domijan moved to accept the minutes of the February 25, 2004 meeting as
presented. Mr. Sleeter seconded the Motion.

AYES Mr. Domijan, Mr. Sleeter, Mr. Baker,
NAYS. None
ABSTAIN: Mr. Benes, Ch. Pro-Tem Lukas

Ch. Pro-Tem Lukas declared the minutes approved as presented.

MEETING PROCEDURES

In the absence of Chairman White, Chairman Pro-Tem Lukas (Chairman Lukas) explained the
procedures to be followed for the meeting, reviewing the variation petitions before the Board.
He said that the Board has the authority to either grant or deny the variation petitions, and the
Board' s decison isthefina decison of the Village. Chairman Lukas then asked anyonein the
audience who intended to testify in this public hearing to rise and be svorn in.

Ms. Amanda Browne, Planner, noted the publication of the public hearing notices for dl three
variations was provided for as required by law.

Zoning Board of Appeds 1 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-bhhwwwwwgwwwwl\)l\)l\)l\)l\)l\)I\JI\)I\JI\)HI—‘HI—‘HI—‘HI—‘HI—‘
NEFP,OOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

PUBLIC HEARING: ZBA-03-04 A petition seeking a variation for areduction of the
minimum required front yard for an addition to asingle family resdence located a the southwest
corner of Barneswood Drive and Highland Avenue, commonly known as 1001 Barneswood
Drive, Downers Grove, IL (PIN 06-32-301-005); Bill and Dee Galloway Kribs,
Ownerg/Petitioners

Petitioner's Presentation:

Ms. Dee Gdloway Kribs, 1001 Barneswood Drive said she and her husband purchased the
home about three years ago to accommodate her husband who had had a bypass operation.
The homeis aranch style home and they intend to add one bedroom to the premises because
they will be caring for their Mothers who are age 87 and 84. They intend to build the addition
aong the back of the home and dign it with thelr garage.

Mr. Benes asked whether they were aware that their home was nonconforming when they
purchased it. Ms. Kribs said they were not aware of that. They purchased the home directly
from the previous owners.

Mr. Mike Davenport, 6636 Blackstone Drive, architect for the addition, said that the survey
given to the petitioner showed the 30 foot building line on the survey asarecord. A previous
architect who had submitted plans to the Kribs family aso did not pick up that the parcel was
nonconforming.

Mr. Benes asked if they were aware that the proposed addition exceeds the setback. Mr.
Davenport responded that the existing garage is closer to Highland Avenue than either of the
proposed additions.

Mr. Sleeter said he read the materia, which indicated there was a flood plain on the property.
He noticed that the ground in the front yard is so saturated that the Sign posted to announce the
Zoning Board meeting had falen over. He asked if this would be a problem with the garage,
and how will it be dedlt with.

Mr. Davenport said that the assumption that the sign fell over because of the saturation is
incorrect. It fel over the day there were 60 mph winds. He further responded that the
floodplain isin the center of the proposed garage addition. They intend to pursue an infill and
adjusment to the flood plain line, or they will make the garage into a one-car addition rather
than atwo-car garage addition.

Mr. Baker said thereis anot a smooth setback line with the current building on the east Side of

the property. He asked why they could not have made the addition in compliance with the
setback regulation since the fagade of the building is not currently consistent.

Zoning Board of Appeds 2 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-b-b-bhwwwwwgwwwwNNNNNNNNNNHI—‘HI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\
WNPEFPOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

Mr. Davenport responded that the entire house is built within the required yard. He said that
because of the gabled roof, neither addition would bein line with the existing structure. It is
both a structurd and aesthetic problem. By doing what they have proposed, it looks intentional
that the design of the facade varies.

Mr. Baker asked whether the garage would be interfering with the traffic on Highland Avenue,

Mr. Davenport said that the surveys done are accurate to his knowledge. He doesn't see any
gght view problems.

Mr. Baker said that it gppears as though they are planning a4-car garage. Ms. Galloway Kribs
responded that they have decided on a 3-car garage, which will provide added storage.

Mr. Baker asked whether they obtained feedback from the neighbors. Ms. Galloway Kribs
said their neighbors are present, and they approve of the proposal.

There being no further questions, Chairman Lukas caled upon the staff to make its presentation.

Staff's Presentation:

Mr. Keith Shird, Planner for the Village, reviewed the variations being sought by the petitioner.
The north side variation is 3 feet 6 inches from the Highland Avenue property line, and the south
ddeisa3foot 3inch variaion. The variationswould dlow the congtruction of anew garage as
well asthe additiona bedroom. Given the 12.5-foot height of the house, the standard required
front yard is 35 feet.  The house was constructed in 1959, and the survey at that time indicated
a 30-foot building line. Mr. Shiral said that the variations sought are 10% and 10.9% for the
north and south additions.

Mr. Shird stated that the Department of Public Works reviewed the petition with respect to
sormwater and floodplain issues. He indicated that the Zoning Board of Appedlsis authorized
to grant up to a50% variation if they fed dl requirements and standards are met. He indicated
that staff's recommendation is that the petitioners continue to seek avenues other than the
vaidaions. He then reviewed the recommendation as stated by Staff in its memorandum to the
Board.

Mr. Baker asked for clarification that regardless of whether the proposed addition is within the
guiddlines, the fact that it is nonconforming to begin with would require them to come before the
Board. Mr. Shiral said that would occur only if the addition encroached into the front yard.

Mr. Davenport indicated in support of the petitioners comment saying they did not know about
the nonconformity, that the topographica survey prepared shows a 30 foot building line dong
Highland. Apparently, previous engineers who viewed this Ste aso appear to be unaware of
the nonconformity.

Zoning Board of Appeds 3 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-b-b-bhwwwwwgwwwwNNNNNNNNNNHI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\
WNPEFPOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

Mr. Sleeter asked how close a building could be to afloodplain line. Ms. Browne said that the
petitioner has indicated it can be built right up to theline.

There being no other comments, Chairman Lukas closed the opportunity for further public
commert.

Board's Ddliber ations:

Mr. Seeter said that thisis awell-warranted proposal. His concern was about the flood plain
line; however, snce they are going with a 3-car garage that seemsto be no problem. Froma
zoning standpoint, he would support the request.

Mr. Benes said his concern was the 30 feet shown on the plat, but the setbacks somewhere
aong the line must have been changed. The house was actudly built in conformance prior to the
setback change. He has no problem with the petition.

Mr. Domijan said this was awell-prepared petition, and the Kribs have worked with the
various Village Departments. He has no problem with the petition.

Chairman Lukas said he concurred with the other Board members, that the petition was well put
together, and that the standards for the variations have been met. He then called for aMation.

Mr. Sleeter moved that in case ZBA-03-04, the Zoning Board of Appealsgrant the
petition for a variation to reduce the minimum required front yard setback, subject to
the following conditions:

1. Thepetitioner should continue to explore meansto reduce or eiminatethe
requested variations.

2. The petitioner must address all issues as outlined in the Public Works
memorandum dated February 20, 2004 prior to any building/stormwater per mit
approval.

3. Theexiging Highland Avenuerequired front yard nonconfor mity of the existing
structure shall not be expanded/increased.

4. Any changed conditions from those currently identified by the petitioner asthe
basisfor this petition or its potential approval shall requirereview by the
Village and may require subsequent review by the Zoning Board of Appeals.

5. Compliance with all applicable Federal, State, and Village laws, or dinances,
regulations and policies.

Mr. Domijan seconded the M otion.

AYES. Mr. Sleeter, Mr. Domijan, Mr. Benes, Mr. Baker,
Ch. Lukas

Zoning Board of Appeds 4 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-bhhwwwwwgwwwwl\)l\)l\)l\)l\)l\)I\JI\)I\JI\)HI—‘HI—‘HI—‘HI—‘HI—‘
NEFP,OOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

NAYS None
The Motion passed unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARING: ZBA-04-04 A petition seeking a variation for areduction of the
minimum required sSde yard setback for an addition to asingle family residence located at the
east side of Highland Avenue, approximately 305 feet north of 41% Street, commonly known as
4117 Highland Avenue, Downers Grove, IL (PIN 09-05-105-017); Leann & John Lalli,
Ownerg/Petitioners

Petitioner's Presentation:

Mr. and Mrs. John Lalli of 4117 Highland Avenue stated they wish to place an addition to ther
house, which has non-conforming setbacks. They have a9 foot x29 foot flat roof over the
garage and they wish to build over that space. They would aso raise the attic wall because of
the doping cellings. He said that the house has Six levels. In the design process, they were
unaware of the setback issues. Theinitid desgn was 24 feet, but that was modified to meet the
Code requirements. Mr. Lalli said they believe that the design they have submitted fits within
the character of the neighborhood, and is aestheticdlly pleasing. He noted that they have four
children, and are expecting their fifth.

Mr. Benes asked about the constructed wall. Mr. Lolli said the house was constructed in 1950
and in 1951, they added a garage and kitchenette to the farthest north wall. 1t wasafull 12 inch
footing. For this petition, Mr. Lolli said they wish to extend that wal and dlows them to build
over an exigting foundation and wall, and dlows the use of the maximum space.

Mr. Benes then spoke about the elevations of the right side, pointing out to Mr. Lolli that it
shows aroof height of 1.6 feet higher than the Code, which affects the setbacks. He asked to
verify that the rooms on the 2™ floor would have full ceilings. Mr. Lolli said that was correct.

Mr. Baker said he was confused, and asked whether the petitioner was actudly adding floor
space, or usable floor space. Mr. Lalli said they are adding useable floor space to the attic
where theroof isflat over the garage. Mr. Baker then asked about the dope of roof, and Mr.
Lolli said that some aress of the addition would have doped cellings.

Staff's Report

Mr. Keith Shira stated the petitioner is requesting two variations; one on the north side and one
on the south sde. The housein find form will be 21.5 feet tal to midpoint, which adds 1.5 feet
to eech Sdeyard. The petitioner is not expanding the footprint, but is placing the addition on
the existing footprint. Mr. Shird said the variations are 28.5% on the north side of the house,
and 19.7% on the south side and noted that the Board is alowed to grant up to a 50%

Zoning Board of Appeds 5 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-b-b-bhwwwwwgwwwwNNNNNNNNNNHI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\
WNPEFPOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

variation. The Department of Public Works reviewed the site and found that there would be no
adverse impact to the neighboring property.

Mr. Shird noted the three standard conditions in the recommendation section of the Staff report
for the Board's congderation.

Mr. Lukas asked whether the required resident letters were mailed, and Mr. Shird said they
were sent to homeowners within 250 feet of the house.

Mr. Baker asked whether the petitioners have discussed this with their neighbors.  Mr. Baker
said they did discussit. He noted that there are many rentas on their street. One neighbor was
glad that there was not going to be ateardown. There has been no negative feedback from
neighbors, and Chairman Lukas noted that there was no one present in the audience to oppose
the petition.

There being no further discussion, Chairman Lukas closed the opportunity for further public
commen.

Board's Deliber ations:

Mr. Domijan said it was obvious that the owners had explored severd options for the addition.
He saw nothing wrong with the request and stated he would be in favor of it.

There being no contrary opinions, Chairman Lukas caled for aMation.

Mr. Benes moved that in case ZBA-04-04, the Zoning Board of Appeals grant the
petition for the variations asrequested in their petition, with the following conditions:.

1. Thepetitioner should continue to explore meansto reduce or eiminatethe
requested variation.

2. Any changed conditions from those currently identified by the petitioner asthe
basisfor thispetition or its potential approval shall require review by the
Village and may require subsequent review by the Zoning Board of Appeals.

3. Compliance with all applicable Federal, State, and Village laws, or dinances,
regulations and policies.

Mr. Baker seconded the M otion.

AYES Mr. Benes, Mr. Baker, Mr. Domijan, Mr. Slester,
Ch. Lukas

NAYS None

Zoning Board of Appeds 6 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-b-b-bhwwwwwgwwwwNNNNNNNNNNHI—‘HI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\
WNPEFPOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

The Motion passed unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARING: ZBA-05-04 A petition seeking a variation to reduce the minimum
required front yard for property located at the southeast corner of Rogers Street and Prospect
Avenue, commonly known as 715-719 Rogers Street, Downers Grove, IL (PIN 09-08-206-
001, -002) 1501 Ogden Associates, LLC, Owner; Scott G. Krafthefer, Petitioner.

Petitioner's Presentation:

Mr. Scott Krafthefer, 4927 Oakwood Avenue, said he was a member of 1501 Ogden LLC,
owners of the subject property. They purchased the property last May, and renovated 5,000
sguare feet of the building over the summer, and they are now in Phase 2 of the renovation.

Mr. Krafthefer expressed his opinion that the existing portion of the building is a structurd
nightmare. It is part of amanufacturing building which was built in 1927. He said that he
submitted plans for Phase 2 in November. The response they received from the Village was
that the setback off of Rogersis reduced by the Zoning Ordinance to 10 feet; however, the
setback off of Prospect is the standard 35-foot setback requirement. When designing the
renovation, he said that he did not take into consideration that Prospect would require a
different setback than Rogers.

Mr. Krafthefer continued, that in order to get the proposd into the maximum alowable
variance, they revised their plansto have a 17.5 foot front yard dong Progpect. He said they
would tear down the portion of the building that has not yet been renovated, and have two
tenants to move into the building when the renovation is completed. Mr. Krafthefer said heis
confident they can get the baance of parking, storage, and office space to work, and there will
be adequate green space. He added that the north and west elevation will have a brick facade,
and he believes the finished product will fit much better into the neighborhood than the existing
building.

Mr. Benes asked which section of the building has a basement under it. Mr. Krafthefer showed
the Board members the building area using the ste plan shown on the overhead screen. Mr.
Benes then asked if the petitioner isrequired by the Village to complete their side of Progpect
Street with curbs and gutters. Mr. Krafthefer said he did not know.

Mr. Benes then referred to the petitioner's written statement, which indicated that they are
seeking to obtain some land from the Burlington Northern Railroad. Mr. Krafthefer said they
are negotiating with the railroad at present, and they have received preliminary approva from
them to purchase the land. If they were able to purchase the additiond land, they would be able
to provide an additiond 10 parking spaces in that area, which would move some of the
Prospect parking to the south side.

Zoning Board of Appeds 7 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-b-b-bhwwwwwgwwwwNNNNNNNNNNHI—‘HI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\
WNPEFPOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

Mr. Baker asked if the house on the easterly lot is being torn down, and Mr. Krafthefer said it is
not occupied, and could be made rentable, but they do not fed the cost judtifiesit. Therefore,
they are proposing to demolish it to accommodate this plan.

Mr. Lukas asked Staff when they made their presentation to come forward and point out the
actua location of the setbacks on the overhead screen.

Staff's Presentation:

Ms. Amanda Browne used the drawing shown on the overhead screen to illustrate required and
proposed setbacks. She then continued that the petitioner is proposing the demoalition of a
portion of the existing building, the congtruction of an addition, as well as other Ste
improvements. The proposa requires afront yard reduction on the Prospect Street side to
reduce the required setback from 35 feet to 17.5 feet to accommodate the proposed addition,
aswel as parking areas and required screening of the parking areato the north of the building.

Ms. Browne stated the existing building was built prior to the adoption of the current form of the
Zoning Ordinance in April of 1965. Because of this, the existing setback of gpproximately 7.7
feet as measured from the Progpect Avenue front property line is lawfully nonconforming.
However, dl new congtruction or additions are required to be in conformance with the current
Zoning Ordinance requirements. Ms. Browne continued that athough the building addition is
proposed to have a greater setback than the existing building, the proposed 17.5-foot setback
nevertheless requires gpprova of the variation request in order to be constructed.

Ms. Browne said that dthough the petitioner is proposing to fully satisfy the required number of
off-street parking spaces, the petitioner is proposing that the parking areato the north of the
proposed building addition be located within the required front setback aong Prospect Avenue
aswell, with a setback of 22.2 feet as measured from the back of curb to the front property line
along Prospect Avenue.

With respect to the required screening of a parking area adjacent to aresidentialy zoned
property, Ms. Browne said that the petitioner is proposing to utilize alandscaped screen as
opposed to asolid fence or wall; however, heis proposing that the screen be located within the
required front setback along Prospect Avenue aswell.

Ms. Browne continued regarding Engineering-related issues, indicating that two issues have
been identified that are required to be addressed by the petitioner pertaining to permitting plan
submittals and outdoor refuse dumpsters. With respect to Stormwater Management, the
identified issues will be required to be addressed by the petitioner at the congtruction permitting
stage.

Ms. Browne concluded by indicating that Planning Staff recommends granting of the variation,
and congderation of the six conditionsincluded in Staff's Report to the Zoning Board of

Appeds.

Zoning Board of Appeds 8 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-b-b-bhwwwwwgwwwwNNNNNNNNNNHI—‘HI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\
WNPEFPOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

Mr. Benes asked if the petitioner would be alowed to have cars parked along the Prospect
sde. Ms. Browne was unclear asto Mr. Benes question. Mr. Benes repeated that on the east
sde of Progpect Street there is an unimproved Street of about 5 or 6 feet that crops onto
Prospect Street. He used a Site plan to point out the area he is questioning. He sad that if the
petitioner will be dlowed to park in the area, the narrowing area of the road should be
improved. He asked why it has not been done.

Ms. Browne said that when the petition was reviewed by Public Works, atraffic study was not
required, and no comments were made with respect to the existing road conditions. The Traffic
Divison found no negetive impact on the existing roadway conditions. She said she has no
knowledge as to why the partia road has not been improved by the Village, but indicated the
petitioner is not required to make any such roadway improvements.

Mr. Benes asked how the Village gets someone to pay attention to the unimproved area of
dreet, saying there are too many dreetsin the Village that are haf completed. His point is how
this Board or any Board can bring to the Village the fact that this street has to be improved.

Ms. Browne responded that the minutes of this meeting would be forwarded to the Village
Council. She further stated that if Mr. Benesis asking her to refer his comments concerning this
particular street surface to the Traffic Division Manager, separate and apart from the variation
request, shewould do that. Mr. Benes said that the unfinished street detracts from the
improvements being made by the petitioner to his property.

Mr. Baker asked if Staff assumed that the land would be purchased from the railroad as part of
this petition. Ms. Browne sad this plan does not include any potentid ownership of the railroad
land, because the petitioner does not own it and, therefore, cannot include it in avariation
petition without written authorization from the current owner. She added that if the additiona
land does become a viable option to the petitioner, and if the petitioner proposes to amend the
configuration of the building, he may be required to come back to the Zoning Board of Appedls
if the change is deemed significant enough to warrant reconsderation.

Mr. Krafthefer asked if they did acquire land from the railroad, who would deem any future
changesto the plan asbeing "sgnificant”. Mr. Browne sad it would be the Director of Planning
and Community Development. Minor deviations from a plan gpproved by the Zoning Board of
Apped s can be consdered adminigtratively; however, because she cannot anticipate what
changes the petitioner might propose in the future, she cannot know whether any such changes
would be consdered sgnificant enough of a departure to warrant reconsideration by the Zoning
Board of Appedls.

Mr. Baker asked if the Board may comment on that, as he feds that it does nott make senseto

gpprove this plan knowing there is an intent to purchase the land. This petition may haveto
come back to the Board in afew months.

Zoning Board of Appeds 9 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

-b-b-bhwwwwwgwwwwNNNNNNNNNNHI—‘HI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\
WNPEFPOOONO O WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

Ms. Browne responded this petitioner was made aware that the proposal to include additional
land could not be considered by the Board at this hearing. She continued any petitioner who
comes before the Board is aware that what they are proposing iswhat is ultimately being
consdered by this Board, and any future deviations from that plan, if they are deemed
sgnificant, must come back to the Board for consideration.

Ms. Browne continued if the petitioner’ s request is approved, and then he later proposes to
increase the Sze of the addition, it might be such that the length of the wall that is under
congderation for the setback variation is sgnificantly increased from the proposal being
presented tonight. Changes in the building addition could adso impact other aspects of the
proposal such as parking and green space. None of these potentia changes can be predicted
nor should they be presumed to be non-sgnificant at this point.

Mr. Domijan said the petition mentions that the whole property isM-1 and istwo parcels. He
asked if the residence on the easterly parcel was ever zoned residentid. Ms. Browne said she
did not believe any property on the south sde of Rogers has had aresdentia classfication since
the adoption of the current form of the Zoning Ordinancein April of 1965.

Mr. Baker asked if the graveled parking area was grandfathered in because it is not paved as
required by current Code, and Ms. Browne said that the Site in its current condition with respect
to structure setbacks and parking is congdered lawfully nonconforming as it was developed
prior to the adoption of the current form of the Zoning Ordinance.

Chairman Pro-Tem Lukas asked if there were any additional questions from the Board. There
was none. Chairman Pro-Tem Lukas asked if there were anyone in the audience wishing to
address the Board. There being no response from the audience, and there being no further
questions from the Board, Chairman Lukas closed the opportunity for further public comment.

Board's Deliber ations:

Mr. Baker said he thought the proposd continues with the improvement of the area. He likes
that the petitioner is not taking advantage of parking on the Prospect side. He supportsthe
petition as a mgor improvemen.

Mr. Domijan said it is an enhancement to the parcedl, and it is good to see someone coming in
and working within the rules and regulations of the Village to improve the Ste. He sees nothing
wrong with the gpplication.

Mr. Seeter said he was dso comfortable with the improvement.

Ch. Lukas said he agreed with the Board members and with the petitioner's plan for that area.
He then entertained a Motion.

Zoning Board of Appeds 10 Mar. 23, 2004



O o0 ~NO UL WNPE

wwwwgwwwwNNNNNNNNNNHI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\HI—\
0 N O O1 WNPOOWOO~NOOULARWNPFPODOO~NOOOGPMWDNEO

APPROVED

Mr. Domijan moved that in Case ZBA-05-04, the Zoning Board of Appeals grant the
petition for a variation as submitted, subject to the following conditions:

1. Thepetitioner should continue to explore meansto reduce or eliminate
exceptionsto the extent practical;

2. Compliance with the Public Works memorandum, with attachments, dated
March 5, 2004;

3. Any outdoor storage or usesthat may result in non-availability of parking
spaces must be coordinated with the Village;

4. All storage of refuse shall occur in thefacility or in appropriate enclosuresat all
times;

5. Any changed conditions from those currently identified by the petitioner asthe
basisfor this petition shall requirereview by the Village and may require
subsequent review by the Zoning Board of Appeals;

6. Compliancewith all applicable Federal, State, and Village laws, or dinances,
regulations and policies.

Mr. Sleeter seconded the M otion.

AYES Mr. Domijan, Mr. Sleeter, Mr. Benes, Mr. Baker,
Ch. Pro-Tem Lukas

NAYS None

The Mation passed unanimously.

Mr. Baker said he wanted to go on record stating that if the petitioner is able to acquire the
property from therailroad, and if any changes to the plans are not Sgnificant, that the petitioner
not be required to come before the Board to review the proposed changes.

Chairman White then adjourned the meeting a 9:15 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Tonie Harrington
Recording Secretary

Zoning Board of Appeds 11 Mar. 23, 2004



